
 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, May 22, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Chris Mann, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   

III. Staff Report 

IV. Presentations 

A. Overview of the 2018 Inland Solar Challenge Event [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-133 - 
Page 6 of 127] 

B. Overview of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District’s Water Conservation Center 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-134 - Page 10 of 127] 

V. Strategic Planning 

A. Discussion of the Strategic Planning and Status Report Related to Public Relations 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-135 - Page 12 of 127] 

VI. Operational Updates 

A. Status Update of the Yucaipa Creek Erosion Control Project [Workshop Memorandum No. 
18-136 - Page 15 of 127] 

B. Status Report for the Tracer Study on the R-13.1 Clearwell at the Yucaipa Valley Regional 
Water Filtration Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-137 - Page 18 of 127] 

C. Overview of a Property Agreement for an Alley Pipeline Replacement Adjacent to Yucaipa 
Boulevard [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138 - Page 20 of 127] 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 1 of 127

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

VII. Capital Improvement Projects 

A. Authorization to Solicit Bids for Douglas Street, Cornell Drive, Auburn Avenue, Citibank / 
Yucaipa Blvd and Oak Glen Road Replacement Pipelines [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-
139 - Page 29 of 127] 

B. Consideration of the Installation of Hardscape near Reservoir R-13.1 at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-140 - Page 31 of 127] 

C. Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Construction of an 8-Inch Drinking Water Pipeline in Oak 
Glen Road [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-141 - Page 34 of 127] 

D. Status Report on the Emergency Repairs for Drinking Water Reservoir 17.1.1 [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-142 - Page 36 of 127] 

VIII. Development Projects 

A. Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement with Western Pacific Housing for the 
Development of 121 lots in Calimesa - Portions of Tract Nos. 26925, 30386, and 30386-1 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143 - Page 39 of 127] 

IX. Administrative Items 

A. Overview of the Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 2019 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144 - Page 57 of 127] 

B. Rental of Bear Valley Mutual Water Company Stock Shares for the 2018 Irrigation Season 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-145 - Page 69 of 127] 

C. Review of Amendment No. 3 to the Contract with RMC / Woodard & Curran for the Title 22 
Engineering Report for Indirect Potable Reuse Project – Wilson Creek Spreading Basins 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-146 - Page 70 of 127] 

D. Consideration of Becoming Active Members in the Association of California Water Agencies 
and the California Association of Sanitation Agencies [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-147 
- Page 75 of 127] 

E. Discussion Regarding Annexation of 242.63 Acres to the Yucaipa Valley Water District - 
TSG Cherry Valley (Assessor Parcel Numbers 407-220-004, 007, 008, 009, 014, 016, and 
017, and 413-270-012 and 013) [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-148 - Page 77 of 127] 

F. Overview of Property Purchase Offer from the City of Yucaipa for Land Located at 11335 
Pendleton Road, Yucaipa [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149 - Page 81 of 127] 

G. Review of Proposed Insurance Policies for Fiscal Year 2019 [Workshop Memorandum No. 
18-150 - Page 105 of 127] 

H. Review of a Draft Fee Deposit and Refund Agreement for the San Gorgonio Land Project 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151 - Page 106 of 127] 

X. Director Comments 

XI. Announcements 

A. June 5, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

B. June 12, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

C. June 19, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

D. June 26, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop Cancelled 

E. July 3, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting Cancelled 

F. July 10, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

G. July 17, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

H. July 31, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

I. August 7, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 2 of 127



Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 3 
 
 

 

J. August 14, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

K. August 21, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

L. August 28, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

XII. Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 3 of 127



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 4 of 127



 

 

Presentations 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 5 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-133 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

Subject: Overview of the 2018 Inland Solar Challenge Event  

 
The 10th Annual Inland Solar Challenge will be held on May 19th and 20th at the Yucaipa Regional 
Park.  Ten schools will be participating in this event with the District sponsoring the Yucaipa High 
School team.  
 
The event encourages students to use their creative problem-solving skills and teamwork while 
providing an opportunity for water agencies to educate the students about water issues through 
the development of public service announcement videos. 
 
Yucaipa Valley Water District staff members that will be involved with the event this year include: 
Jennifer Ares; Ashley Gibson; Matthew Flordelis; Todd Madrid; Matthew Porras; and John 
Wrobel.   
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 6 of 127



Director Memorandum No. 18-133  Page 2 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 7 of 127



Director Memorandum No. 18-133  Page 3 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 8 of 127



Director Memorandum No. 18-133  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 9 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-134 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

Subject: Overview of the Chino Basin Water Conservation District’s Water Conservation 
Center   

 
The Chino Basin Water Conservation District manages the Chino Groundwater Basin and actively 
captures and percolates water through a network of channels, basins, and spreading grounds.  In 
addition, the Conservation District has a comprehensive water conservation program housed on 
a 4.5-acre site.  The Water Conservation Center integrates on-site stormwater capture, a public 
park, demonstration gardens, and multiple interpretive displays. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 10 of 127



 

 

Strategic Planning 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 11 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-135 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion of the Strategic Planning and Status Report Related to Public Relations 

 
On March 8, 2018, the Board of Directors discussed the implementation of a public relations and 
outreach program that would include the following elements: 
 

• Public Relations and Outreach - Plan and implement a program to gain and enhance the 
District’s presence involving: 

o Social media;  
o Website refresh and upgrades;  
o Video clips;  
o Summary of the District’s operations; 
o Historical information; and 
o Near real-time press releases. 

 
On April 3, 2018, the Board of Directors authorized the preparation of a historical summary of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District with Crider Public Relations.  The material generated from the historical 
summary will be used to prepare videos and social media clips in the future. 
 
The District staff has been working on the preparation of a Request for Proposals for additional public 
relations and outreach work.  However, instead of selecting a firm for traditional public relations 
efforts, the District staff is contemplating the issuance of a Request for Proposals for Digital Creative 
Services.  This RFP would include the following scope of services: 

• Develop and execute a Search Engine Optimization (SEO) strategy for the District. 

• Develop and provide a 4-page monthly e-newsletter including design, content development, 
and photographs in native file formats approved by the District and as a PDF for distribution 
by the District. 

• Develop a series of new customer on-boarding engagement email messages and content 
about the District services, meetings, and service options. 

• Prepare, develop and produce 3-minute videos about the following services and activities by 
the District:  

o Brine disposal;  
o Cross-connection needs and issues;  
o Dual-plumbing requirements for new homes;  
o Emergency preparedness;  
o Environmental protection;  
o General water issues;  
o Geographical Information Systems (GIS);  
o Operations and maintenance activities;  
o Recycled water fill station;  
o Recycled water recharge;  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 12 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-135  Page 2 of 2 

o Recycled water;  
o Reverse osmosis needs and opportunities;  
o Science, technology, engineering and math (STEM) in the water/sewer industry;  
o Sewer collection;  
o Sewer treatment;  
o State Water Project partners (SBVMWD and SGPWA);  
o Sustainability goals; 
o Water supply sources; and  
o Water/sewer operator certifications. 

▪ Videos to maintain the same theme, branding, color scheme in a raw and 
finished format. 

• An additional five videos may be requested for various topics during the fiscal year. 

• Develop ten video introductions (15 seconds) and ten video closings in a raw format that can 
be used to add titles in the future. 

• Develop and implement a communication strategy, material and videos for informing and 
training recycled water customers that purchase or rent dual-plumbed homes. 

 
With this material prepared, the District staff would be able to make the videos available on our 
website, social medial outlets, or for presentations in the future. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 13 of 127



 

 

Operational Updates 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 14 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-136 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Status Update of the Yucaipa Creek Erosion Control Project 

 
About two years ago, the District staff made 
improvements to the sewer collection system 
bridge that crosses Yucaipa Creek, south of 
Interstate 10. 
 
As a part of the sewer bridge improvements, slope 
erosion control systems were installed to assist in 
the preservation of the adjacent slopes and 
structural footings. 
 
Over the past few years, storm events have 
undercut the erosion control in multiple areas.  
The amount of repair work at its current state is 
relatively small, at 65 linear feet of 3’x3’ Gabions 
and 230 square feet of grouted rip-rap.  The plan 
is to make the repairs now and maintain the 
erosion control structures before the condition 
degrades further.  
 
The required permits have been obtained and the 
necessary mitigation measures have been 
secured. [DM 18-048]  The repair effort will be 
performed by Rock Structures Construction 
Company with an estimated cost of $27,500. 
 
District staff will provide updates as the project 
continues. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 15 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-136  Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 16 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-136  Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 17 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-137 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Status Report for the Tracer Study on the R-13.1 Clearwell at the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
The Surface Water Treatment Rule 
requires a minimum combination of 
disinfectant dose and contact time to 
provide inactivation of potential pathogens 
in drinking water supplies.   

 
The Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 
utilizes a six million gallon clearwell to achieve 
contact time compliance with the Surface Water 
Rule Requirements.  The clearwell consists of five 
baffles and has been operating under an industry 
standard baffling factor. 
 

During the District's 2017 Sanitary Survey, the State Water Resource Control Board, Division of 
Drinking Water suggested confirmation of the contact time related to the filtration facility to validate 
the compliance with California Regulations Related to Drinking Water, published September 23, 
2016, page 217, which states: 
 

§64651.32. Disinfectant Contact Time. "Disinfectant contact time" means the 
time in minutes that it takes for water to move from the point of disinfectant 
application or a previous point of disinfectant residual measurement to a point 
before or at the point where residual disinfectant concentration is measured. 
Disinfectant contact time in pipelines is calculated by dividing the internal volume 
of the pipe by the flow rate through the pipe. Disinfectant contact time within mixing 
basins and storage reservoirs is determined by tracer studies or an equivalent 
demonstration to the State Board. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 18 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-137  Page 2 of 2 

On August 15, 2017, the Board of Directors authorized a tracer study to be performed at the 
Yucaipa Valley Water Filtration Facility R-13.1 clearwell by HDR, Incorporated [Director 
Memorandum No. 17-068].  
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the status of the tracer study. 
 
The study was postponed due to weather fluctuations late last year and early this year which 
resulted in inconsistent water demands and process flow set-points.  Also, the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility was shut down for annual maintenance during March and April 
pushing the study to May.  Warmer weather and an increase in water demand allows for the tracer 
study to now proceed.  
 
The study is scheduled to begin the week of May 21, 2018 and estimated to be completed within 
two weeks.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 19 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-138 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Overview of a Property Agreement for an Alley Pipeline Replacement Adjacent to 
Yucaipa Boulevard 

 
The District needs to replace an 
aging 4” steel water main that is past 
its useful life between Yucaipa 
Boulevard and Cedar Avenue.  The 
proposed new water pipeline will 
need to be constructed slightly to the 
west of the existing pipeline which 
will require a new easement from the 
property owner and an agreement 
with the existing tenant. 
 
The proposed pipeline project is 
currently in the design stage and will 
be included in a grouping of 
upcoming pipeline replacement 
projects. 
 
At a future board meeting, the District 
Staff will be recommending that the 
Board of Directors authorize the 
Board President to execute the final 
version of the attached agreement. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 20 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138  Page 2 of 8 

 

 
 
The proposed alignment will need to accommodate for existing structures and utilities. 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 21 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138  Page 3 of 8 

 

34580 YUCAIPA BOULEVARD  
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT AND CITIBANK 
June 5, 2018 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District, a Special District, hereinafter referred to as “District”, and Citibank, 
a tenant of the aforementioned property, hereinafter referred to as "Citibank", hereby mutually 
agree as follows: 
 
A. Background and Purpose of Agreement.  

The District is planning a Project that 
includes replacing an existing pipeline 
located at 34580 Yucaipa Boulevard in the 
City of Yucaipa (APN 0303-175-39), 
hereinafter referred to as the “property”.  
The property is owned by CP Sunshine 
LLC, who is granting an easement to the 
District for construction, operation, and 
maintenance of the replacement pipeline.  
The property was previously utilized as a 
branch office by Citibank.  It is the District's 
understanding that Citibank is the sole 
lessee of the property and has full 
possession and full responsibility for the 
property.  The purpose of this Agreement is 
for the District to obtain a right of entry from Citibank to perform the work described above. 

 
B. Scope of Agreement.  The Scope of the Agreement includes: 

 
1. Citibank hereby grants right of entry to the District to the property to construct, 

operate, and maintain a water pipeline in accordance with the easement granted 
by CP Sunshine, LLC (Grant of Easement attached for reference). 

2. Prior to commencing construction, the District will procure insurance certificates 
from the contractor performing the work naming Citibank as additionally insured.  

3. Prior to commencing construction, the District will inspect the site with Citibank's 
representative to document the pre-construction condition of the site.  The District 
will also prepare a video recording of the site.  

4. Prior to completion of construction, the District will insure that all areas affected by 
construction will be restored to pre-job conditions, including areas used for parking, 
storage of vehicles, and storage of equipment.  All existing improvements 
damaged during construction such as curbs, paving, and sidewalks will be 
replaced or repaired to preconstruction conditions (or better). 

5. District will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Citibank, its officers, employees 
and agents, from any claims, demands, or causes of action and lawsuits, based 
on, arising out of, or related to the construction, operation, or use of pipelines, 
equipment, and facilities owned or operated by the District or its agents. 
 

The District and Citibank hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants and conditions 
contained herein.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 22 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138  Page 4 of 8 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Yucaipa Valley Water District and Citibank _____ have executed 
this Agreement the day and year first written below.  
 
 

Citibank   Yucaipa Valley Water District 
   

___________, _____________  Jay Bogh, Board of Directors, President 

   

Date  Date 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 23 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138  Page 5 of 8 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 24 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138  Page 6 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 25 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138  Page 7 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 26 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-138  Page 8 of 8 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 27 of 127



 

 

Capital Improvement Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 28 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-139 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Dustin Hochreiter, Senior Engineering Technician 

Subject: Authorization to Solicit Bids for Douglas Street, Cornell Drive, Auburn Avenue, 
Citibank / Yucaipa Blvd and Oak Glen Road Replacement Pipelines 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has essentially completed the design and bid package for 
replacement drinking water pipelines in Douglas Street, Cornell Drive, Auburn Avenue, Citibank 
and Oak Glen Road. 
 
The proposed pipeline project involves 
multiple pipeline segments in various 
locations; approximately 3,820± Linear 
Feet of 8-inch and 6-inch cement mortar 
lined ductile iron pipe, including various 
laterals, valves, appurtenances, and 
connections.  

The construction of 411 linear feet of 6-
inch ductile iron pipe in the Citibank / 
Yucaipa Blvd area and the 3,409 linear 
feet of 8-inch ductile iron pipe on Auburn 
Avenue, Cornell Drive, Douglas Street 
and Oak Glen Road is due to failing 
infrastructure of the existing distribution 
system.  
 
This project is categorically exempt from 
environmental review in accordance 
with the California Environmental 
Quality Act Guidelines Section 
15301(c). 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 29 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-139  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 30 of 127



 

Director Memorandum 18-140 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Consideration of the Installation of Hardscape near Reservoir R-13.1 at the 
Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility  

 
The District staff is proposing to modify the 
landscaping around Reservoir R-13.1 to a low 
maintenance hardscape which will match the 
existing hardscape on the property.  This 
change will require the purchase of four 
hundred forty tons of crushed Desert Gold rock 
for a sum not to exceed $34,800 and labor to 
remove the existing vegetation for an amount of 
$4,140.  This also includes installation of a 
weed barrier fabric and matching rock at the 
corner where the District’s Recycled Water 
monument rock now exists.   

 
District staff is asking for your consideration to 
contract the identified hardscape scope of 
work at R-13.1 to the District’s current 
contracted landscape company, Pacific Coast 
Landscape & Design, Inc., for a sum not to 
exceed $38,940. 
 

The San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District is currently providing a rebate of 
$1.00 per square foot of turf removed.  
District staff is working closely with Valley 
District staff to receive a credit for this 
replacement landscaping for a sum not to 
exceed the actual cost. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 31 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-140  Page 2 of 3 

 
 

                 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 32 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-140  Page 3 of 3 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 33 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-141 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Chelsie Fogus, Engineering Technician I 

Subject: Authorization to Solicit Bids for the Construction of an 8-Inch Drinking Water 
Pipeline in Oak Glen Road 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has essentially 
completed the design and bid package for a new 8-
inch booster pipeline to be installed in Oak Glen 
Road. 
 
The proposed pipeline project involves the 
construction of approximately 1,560 linear feet of 8-
inch ductile iron pipe, including valves and 
appurtenances, and removal and replacement of 
AC pavement.  There will be a temporary 6-inch 
highline fully restrained rated for 200 PSI working 
pressure during the construction of the permanent 
pipeline. 
 
This project is categorically exempt from 
environmental review in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 
Section 15301(c). 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 34 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-141  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 35 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-142 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 

Subject: Status Report on the Emergency Repairs for Drinking Water Reservoir 17.1.1 

 
On November 21, 2017, the Board of Directors 
authorized emergency coating repairs for 
drinking water reservoir R-17.1.1 with Superior 
Tank Solutions [Director Memorandum No. 17-
108]. 
 
On Monday, January 29, 2018, Superior Tank 
Solutions began repairs.  Upon removing the 
coal tar enamel from the floor, it was evident 
that the floor needed replacement, not repair.  
The existing floor consists of numerous welded 
patches in various sizes and thousands of pits 
from erosion.  This metal has been worn thin 
and is now a liability to the District.  The side 
shell had approximately ten holes that have 
since been repaired.  
 
At the board meeting on February 20, 2018, the 
Board of Directors ratified the authorization for 
Superior Tank Solutions to proceed with the 
necessary repair work [Director Memorandum 
No. 18-033]. 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the status of the repairs and give a 
timeline for the return of service. 
 
Completed repairs to date:  

• Inside coating  

• New floor  

• New roof hatch and vent 

• Influent/effluent pipe welding 

• Isolation valve installed 

• Chime bands installed 

• Filled with water to verify zero loss 

• Coating integrity/thickness verified  

• Recoat influent/effluent pipe  

• Recoat two spots on the floor 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 36 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-142  Page 2 of 2 

On Tuesday, May 15, 2018, a two-foot by two-foot area on the floor was found to be defective.  
The coating was removed, prepared, and re-applied.  Four to seven days at a minimum ambient 
temperature of 70 degrees Fahrenheit are necessary for curing, resulting in a scheduled coating 
integrity test on Tuesday, May 22, 2018.  If the second re-coating of the area passes the 
inspection tests, the reservoir will be flushed and disinfected. Two series of bacteriological 
samples at least 24 hours apart will be collected and sent to the lab to be analyzed.  Upon 
receiving absent results, Drinking Water Reservoir R-17.1.1 will be placed back into service.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 37 of 127



 

 

Development Projects 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 38 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-143 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Overview of a Proposed Development Agreement with Western Pacific Housing 
for the Development of 121 lots in Calimesa - Portions of Tract Nos. 26925, 30386, 
and 30386-1 

 
At the board workshop meeting on April 10, 2018, the District staff discussed the implementation 
of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Supplemental Water Resource Fee for Tract No. 26925 
and Tract No. 30386.  Based on this discussion, the District staff prepared the attached 
development agreement and provided the document to Western Pacific Housing / DR Horton for 
review. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 39 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 2 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 40 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 3 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 41 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 4 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 42 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 5 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 43 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 6 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 44 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 7 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 45 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 8 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 46 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 9 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 47 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 10 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 48 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 11 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 49 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 12 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 50 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 13 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 51 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 14 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 52 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 15 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 53 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 16 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 54 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-143  Page 17 of 17 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 55 of 127



 

 

Administrative Items 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 56 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-144 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Overview of the Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 
2019 

 
On Monday, May 14, 2018, the Yucaipa Valley Water District conducted a budget workshop to 
review the proposed operating budget for next year.  During the budget workshop, the District 
staff provided a detailed overview of each individual line item for the water, sewer, and recycled 
water enterprise funds of the District.   
 

Budget Overview 
 

The Fiscal Year 2019 operating budget totals $27,783,969 (excluding capital improvement 
projects) distinguished by the following three enterprise funds. 
 

 
 

The departmental expenses for each of the enterprise funds are provided below: 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 57 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 2 of 12 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 58 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 3 of 12 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 59 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 4 of 12 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 60 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 5 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 61 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 6 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 62 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 7 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 63 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 8 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 64 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 9 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 65 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 10 of 12 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 66 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 11 of 12 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 67 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-144  Page 12 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 68 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-145 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Rental of Bear Valley Mutual Water Company Stock Shares for the 2018 Irrigation 
Season 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has 588 shares of Bear Valley stock that will not be utilized this 
year.  Based on inquiries received about the rental of our water shares during the 2018 irrigation 
season, the District staff recommends renting the shares of stock for this calendar year to the 
following parties: 

• Camp Morning Star - 75 shares; and 

• Larry Jacinto - 445 shares. 
 
The rental of these shares is a good example of the assistance and cooperation that exists 
between local water agencies, mutual water companies, and customers to facilitate reasonable 
water management policies in the region.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 69 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-146 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

Subject: Review of Amendment No. 3 to the Contract with RMC / Woodard & Curran for the 
Title 22 Engineering Report for Indirect Potable Reuse Project – Wilson Creek 
Spreading Basins  

 
The District has been actively 
recharging imported water at the 
Wilson Creek Spreading Basins for 
several years.  This recharge strategy 
has resulted in increased water stored 
in the Gateway Groundwater Basin, 
which is the groundwater basin 
located immediately below the Wilson 
Creek recharge facilities.   
 
To further increase the amount of 
water recharged at this location, the 
Board of Directors approved a series 
of technical studies that are required 
by the State of California prior to the 
recharge of recycled water into the 
groundwater supply [Director 
Memorandum No. 15-010].  A 
computer model has been designed 
to predict the travel time and 
underflow characteristics for water 
molecules added to the Wilson Creek 
Spreading Basins.   
 
The next step in the process is the 
preparation of the Title 22 
Engineering Report for the Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge.  The attached contract 
amendment includes the additional compilation of the Title 22 Engineering Report along with 
additional biological studies, comment letters, and the incorporation of the State Water Project 
recharge annual maintenance activities.  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Funding for this project will be from the Recycled Water Fund [GL Account #04-5-06-54109].  This 
Amendment was not included in the 2017-18 budget, however, there is sufficient funding available 
in the reserve fund listed above. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 70 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-146  Page 2 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 71 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-146  Page 3 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 72 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-146  Page 4 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 73 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-146  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 74 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-147 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Becoming Active Members in the Association of California Water 
Agencies and the California Association of Sanitation Agencies  

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District currently participates in the following organizations: 
 

• Administration and Organizational Associations and Organizations: 
o Association of Environmental Professionals - https://www.califaep.org/  
o Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts - 

https://www.csda.net/about-csda/chapters-networks/chapter-san-bernardino  
o California Municipal Treasurers Association - http://www.cmta.org/  
o California Society of Municipal Finance Officers - https://www.csmfo.org/  
o California Special Districts Association - https://www.csda.net/home  
o Emergency Response Network of the Inland Empire - 

https://www.eastvalley.org/217/ERNIE  
o Society for Human Resource Management - https://www.shrm.org/  
o WaterISAC - https://www.waterisac.org/  

 

• Drinking Water Associations and Organizations: 
o American Water Works Association - https://www.awwa.org/  
o Groundwater Resources Association of California - https://www.grac.org/  
o Southwest Membrane Operator Association - https://www.swmoa.org/  

 

• Sewer and Environmental Control Associations and Organizations: 
o California Water Environment Association - http://www.cwea.org/ 
o Multi-State Salinity Coalition - http://multi-statesalinitycoalition.com/  
o Southern California Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works - 

http://scap1.org/SitePages/Home.aspx  
o Western Coalition of Arid States - http://www.westcas.org/  

 

• Recycled Water Associations and Organizations: 
o WateReuse Association - https://watereuse.org/  

 
The District staff continuously reviews and reconsiders our participation in associations and 
organizations as renewal notices are received throughout the fiscal year.  If there is a distinct 
benefit to join an organization, the District will join and distribute information and material received 
to District staff members.  However, if there is limited benefit to join an organization, then it is 
more cost effective to pay a little extra to attend special meetings or events to help District staff 
fully evaluate our participation in an organization.  However, if there is  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 75 of 127

https://www.califaep.org/
https://www.csda.net/about-csda/chapters-networks/chapter-san-bernardino
http://www.cmta.org/
https://www.csmfo.org/
https://www.csda.net/home
https://www.eastvalley.org/217/ERNIE
https://www.shrm.org/
https://www.waterisac.org/
https://www.awwa.org/
https://www.grac.org/
https://www.swmoa.org/
http://www.cwea.org/
http://multi-statesalinitycoalition.com/
http://scap1.org/SitePages/Home.aspx
http://www.westcas.org/
https://watereuse.org/


Workshop Memorandum No. 18-147  Page 2 of 2 

The District staff is currently reviewing and assessing the value of joining the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA - https://casaweb.org/) and the Association of 
California Water Agencies ACWA - https://www.acwa.com/).  The immediate benefit of these two 
organizations is that they deal specifically with issues in the State of California.  Based on recent 
strategic planning discussions, both organizations would provide the District staff and elected 
officials with more detailed information about biosolids, sustainability, current legislation, SGMA, 
and renewable energy issues.   
 
District staff would like to discuss this issue at the board workshop and impacts to the proposed 
operating budget. 
 

 Water Division 
Dues & Subscriptions 

Sewer Division 
Dues & Subscriptions 

General Ledger Line Item 02-5-06-54002 03-5-06-54002 

Proposed FY 2019 Budget $16,500 $9,000 

ACWA Membership Dues $24,760 - - 

CASA Membership Dues - - $16,068 

Revised FY 2019 Budget $41,260 $25,100 

 
If the board did decide to join, the District staff would re-evaluate the benefits of participating in 
ACWA and CASA each year as part of the renewal process and budget process. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 76 of 127

https://casaweb.org/
https://www.acwa.com/


 

 

 

Workshop Memorandum 18-148 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Annexation of 242.63 Acres to the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District - TSG Cherry Valley (Assessor Parcel Numbers 407-220-004, 007, 008, 
009, 014, 016, and 017, and 413-270-012 and 013) 

 
On May 16, 2018, the District received a 
request to proceed with the annexation of 
242.63 acres of territory into the District’s 
boundary for drinking water, recycled 
water, and sewer service.  The area is 
currently within the District’s sphere of 
influence. 
 
The District staff will provide the following 
draft resolution for consideration at the 
board meeting on June 5, 2018. 
 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 77 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-148  Page 2 of 4 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 78 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-148  Page 3 of 4 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
REQUESTING THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION TAKE 

PROCEEDINGS FOR THE ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY  
(Assessor Parcel Numbers 407-220-004, 007, 008, 009, 014, 016,  

and 017, and 413-270-012 and 013) 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water that: 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District desires to initiate 
proceedings pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 
2000, commencing with Section 56000 of the California Government Code, for the annexation of 
property to the Yucaipa Valley Water District; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the territory proposed for a sphere of influence modification and annexation is set 
forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and identified by Assessor Parcel Number above, and by this 
reference incorporated herein; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed annexation is not expected to require a modification to the sphere of 
influence assigned by the Local Agency Formation Commission for the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is desired that the proposed annexation be subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 
 
1. The annexation will require the Yucaipa Valley Water District to provide drinking water, 

recycled water, and sewer collection service to the property pursuant to the rules and 
regulations of the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 

 
2. All standards conditions and cost associated with the filing, proceedings, and preparation 

of material for the Local Agency Formation Commission shall be the sole responsibility of 
the property owner. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this resolution of Application is hereby approved 
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, and the Local Agency 
Formation Commission for San Bernardino County is hereby requested to take proceedings for 
the annexation as illustrated in Exhibit “A”. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Secretary of the Yucaipa Valley Water District is hereby 
authorized and directed to transmit to the Executive Officer of the Local Agency Formation 
Commission a certified copy of this Resolution. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 79 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-148  Page 4 of 4 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 5th day of June 2018. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 80 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-149 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Overview of Property Purchase Offer from the City of Yucaipa for Land Located at 
11335 Pendleton Road, Yucaipa 

 
The City of Yucaipa is planning a project 
that will adjust the alignment and elevation 
of the roadway on Pendleton Road, south 
of Oak Glen Road and north of Highland 
Avenue.  The project will also improve the 
surrounding area and will assist in flood 
control.  
 
The District owns property that will be 
impacted by this project.  The City of 
Yucaipa has prepared an offer to purchase 
the property of approximately 10,000 
square feet for a price of $25,000 as 
described in the attachment.  The District 
has an interest in maintaining a monitoring 
well and limited access.   
 

 
The attached agreement outlines the scope 
of the exchange between The City of 
Yucaipa and the District. 
 
District Staff recommends the Board of 
Directors authorize the Board President to 
execute the attached agreement and 
property offer. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 81 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 2 of 24 

11355 PENDELTON AVENUE  
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF YUCAIPA AND THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
June 5, 2018 

 
The City of Yucaipa, a Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City”, and Yucaipa Valley 
Water District, a Special District, hereinafter referred to as “District”, hereby mutually agree as 
follows: 
 
A. Purpose of Agreement.  The City is planning 

a Project that includes street improvements to 
Pendleton Avenue and flood control 
improvements in the nearby area.  The City 
has offered to purchase property owned by 
the District which contains a ground water 
monitoring well.  The District is interested in 
maintaining the ability to monitor groundwater 
levels in this area.  The project requires the 
relocation of the existing well from 11355 
Pendleton Avenue to a new position within 
APN 0321-411-08, a parcel due west owned 
by the City. 

 
B. Scope of Agreement.  The Scope of the Agreement includes: 

 
1. The District will execute the property offer as presented by the City attached 

herein. 
2. The District will fully abandon the existing monitoring well as before the start of 

Project construction to ensure the groundwater is not contaminated. 
3. The City will grant the attached easement in favor of the District for the installation, 

operation, and maintenance of a new monitoring well before the start of Project 
construction within the APN 0321-411-08. 

4. The District will install the new monitoring well within APN 0321-411-08. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Yucaipa and the Yucaipa Valley Water District have 
executed this Agreement the day and year first written below. 
 
The City and District hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants and conditions 
contained herein. 
 

City of Yucaipa  Yucaipa Valley Water District 
   

Ray Casey, City Manager  Jay Bogh, Board of Directors, President 

   

Date  Date 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 82 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 3 of 24 

 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 83 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 4 of 24 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 84 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 5 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 85 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 6 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 86 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 7 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 87 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 8 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 88 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 9 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 89 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 10 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 90 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 11 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 91 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 12 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 92 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 13 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 93 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 14 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 94 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 15 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 95 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 16 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 96 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 17 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 97 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 18 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 98 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 19 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 99 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 20 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 100 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 21 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 101 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 22 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 102 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 23 of 24 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 103 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-149  Page 24 of 24 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 104 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-150 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Kathryn Hallberg, Management Analyst 

Subject: Review of Proposed Insurance Policies for Fiscal Year 2019 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District currently has a property/liability insurance policy with Inland 
Counties Insurance Services Brokerage with insurance coverage provided by Water Plus 
Insurance Program and Allied World Assurance Coverage. 
 
The District Staff has investigated pooled insurance from Association of California Water 
Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) and our current provider Inland 
Counties Insurance Services Brokerage.  The quotes will be presented at the Board Workshop 
for review. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 105 of 127



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-151 

Date: May 22, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Review of a Draft Fee Deposit and Refund Agreement for the San Gorgonio Land 
Project 

 
On May 10, 2018, the District staff received the attached Fee Deposit and Refund Agreement for 
the San Gorgonio Land, LLC Project.   
 
The District staff would like to receive a consensus from the Board of Directors prior to proceeding 
with the review and participation of the proposed Community Facilities District No. 2018-1 for the 
San Gorgonio Land Project. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 106 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 2 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 107 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 3 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 108 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 4 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 109 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 5 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 110 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 6 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 111 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 7 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 112 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 8 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 113 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 9 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 114 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 10 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 115 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 11 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 116 of 127



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-151  Page 12 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 117 of 127



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 118 of 127



 

 

Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 119 of 127



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 

Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 
62 full time employees 

 

Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 

Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 
13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 

Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 

 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 120 of 127



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 121 of 127



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 122 of 127



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 123 of 127



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 124 of 127



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 125 of 127



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 126 of 127



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - May 22, 2018 - Page 127 of 127




